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Nathaniel Lindzen, Esq. 
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57 School Street  
Wayland, MA 01778 
nlindzen@corpfraudlaw.com 
 
Re: GAO’s April 9, 2024 Public Records Request – Supplemental Response 
 
Dear Nathaniel Lindzen: 
 
I write in supplemental response to our May 3, 2024 response to an April 9, 20241 public 
records request submitted to the Office of the Attorney General (AGO) by Joe Thomas of 
Government Accountability and Oversight (GAO)2 for the following records: 
 

1) common interest agreements entered by the Office of the Attorney General in 2023, 
or in 2024, which covers or includes the term i) climate superfund, and/or ii) climate 
change superfund. These terms are not case sensitive; and also  

2) Common Interest, engagement, retainer, pro bono, representation, non-disclosure, 
confidentiality, contingency and/or fee contract or agreement(s) that were entered into 
by your Office in 2023 or 2024, with or that have as a party the law firm Sher Edling, LLP.  

 
In our May 3, 2024 response, we provided GAO with forty-four (44) pages of records that may 
be responsive to the request and are subject to disclosure under the public records law, M.G.L. 
c. 66, § 10 and M.G.L. c. 4, § 7, cl. 26, and withheld two (2) additional records.  One of the 
records – the Confidentiality Agreement with Sher Edling LLP – is properly withheld from 

 
1 We note that our initial responses, including the May 3, 2024 response, stated that we received the 
request on April 5, 2024.  However, we received this request on April 9, 2024 and a different request 
from GAO on April 5, 2024.   
2 This supplemental response is provided to you as counsel for GAO in the ongoing litigation regarding 
this public records request. 
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disclosure as it constitutes privileged attorney work product3 and an attorney-client 
communication.4   
 
In addition, we withheld one other record – the AGO’s Guidelines for Special Assistant 
Attorneys General – as a privileged attorney-client communication.5  Upon further review, the 
AGO has decided to disclose this record, consisting of thirty-nine (39) pages, with portions 
redacted in accordance with M.G.L. c. 4, § 7, cl. 26(d), as they are deliberative or policymaking 
in nature and relate to an ongoing and evolving deliberative process, namely the AGO’s position 
with respect to the legal requirements and processes for handling civil and criminal litigation 
matters on behalf of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the disclosure of which would taint 
this continuous policymaking process by inhibiting the candid thinking that results in reasoned 
and legally defensible courses of action now and in the future.  In addition, the redacted 
portions of this record constitute privileged attorney work product6 and attorney-client 
communications.7   
 
Finally, to clarify any ambiguity in our May 3, 2024, response, the AGO does not have any 
records responsive to Part 1 of the request.  The records provided and withheld in our May 3, 
2024 response are records that may be responsive to Part 2 of the request.  
 
 
Very truly yours, 

 
Hanne Rush 
Assistant Attorney General  
General Counsel’s Office  
 
cc: Angélica Durón, Assistant Attorney General 
 
 

 
3 See DaRosa v. City of New Bedford, 471 Mass. 446 (2015); see also Commonwealth of Massachusetts v. 
Uber Technologies, Inc. and Lyft, Inc., 2022 WL 16839219 (Suffolk Sup. Ct. February 28, 2022).   
4 See Suffolk Const. Co., Inc. v. Division of Capital Asset Management, 449 Mass. 444 (2007); see also 
Hanover Ins. Co. v. Rapo & Jepsen Ins. Services, Inc., 449 Mass. 609, 616 (2007) (citations omitted) (“The 
attorney-client privilege … also protects such statements made to or shared with necessary agents 
of the attorney or the client … for the purpose of facilitating the rendition of such advice.”). 
5 Id. 
6 See DaRosa, supra; see also Uber Technologies, Inc. and Lyft, Inc., supra. 
7 See Suffolk Const. Co., Inc., supra; see also Hanover Ins. Co., supra. 
















































































